#### STATE OF WISCONSIN COURT OF APPEALS DISTRICT III

# **RECEIVED**

05-26-2015

CLERK OF COURT OF APPEALS OF WISCONSIN

Appeal No. 2015AP000462 Shawano County Circuit Court Case No. 2014TR004200

IN THE MATTER OF THE REFUSAL OF KORY V. AMBROZIAK

**COUNTY OF SHAWANO,** 

Plaintiff-Respondent,

v.

KORY V. AMBROZIAK,

Defendant-Appellant.

AN APPEAL FROM THE JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION BEFORE THE HONORABLE JAMES R. HABECK, JUDGE SHAWANO COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT

THE BRIEF AND APPENDIX OF THE DEFENDANT-APPELLANT KORY V. AMBROZIAK

\_\_\_\_\_

By: Walter A. Piel, Jr.

**Attorney for the Defendant-Appellant** 

State Bar No. 01023997

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

Did the additional information obtained by Deputy

Rogers after the traffic stop provide sufficient additional

suspicion to continue the detention of Mr. Ambrroziak for field

sobriety testing?

Answer: The trial court answered yes.

STATEMENT AS TO ORAL ARGUMENT AND **PUBLICATION** 

Because this is an appeal within Wis. Stats. Sec.

752.31(2), the resulting decision is not eligible for publication.

Because the issues in this appeal may be resolved through the

application of established law, the briefs in this matter should

adequately address the arguments; oral argument will not be

necessary.

iv

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE/FACTS

The defendant-appellant, Kory V. Ambroziak (Mr. Ambroziak) was charged with operating a motor vehicle while under the influence of an intoxicant, a violation of Wis. Stat. §346.63(1)(a) and refusing to submit to a chemical test a violation of Wis. Stat. §343.305(9) stemming from an offense allegedly occurring on August 30, 2014. Mr. Ambroziak timely filed a request for a refusal hearing in writing on September 8, 2014. A refusal hearing was held in the Shawno County Circuit Court on December 19, 2014, the Honorable James R. Habeck, Judge, presiding. The trial court found that Mr. Ambroziak refused to submit to chemical testing in violation of Wis. Stat. §343.305(9). A Judgement of Conviction was filed on December 19, 2014. (R.5:1).

Mr. Ambroziak, by counsel timely filed a Notice of Appeal on March 2, 2014.

The appeal herein stems from the trial court finding that Mr. Ambroziak improperly refused to submit to a chemical test under Wis. Stat. §343.305(9). The facts that are pertinent to this appeal were received through the testimony of Deputy Rogers at the refusal hearing on December 19, 2014.

Deputy Rogers testified that he was employed as a Shawano County Sheriff's Deputy on August 30, 2014 and was on duty at 12:32 a.m. (R.21:3-4/ A.App. 1-2). Rogers testified that on that date at about that time, he was the third vehicle stopped at an intersection in Eland, Shawano County. (R.21:4/ A.App. 1). Rogers testified that he observed the first vehicle spin its tires causing the tires to smoke and debris to fly. *Id.* Rogers explained that there was a second vehicle between his squad and the first vehicle. The first vehicle turned right, traveled 150-200 feet and Deputy Rogers stopped it (R.21:5/ A.App. 3) within eight to ten seconds. (R.21:16/ A.App. 10). Rogers testified that he identified the driver as Mr. Ambroziak. (R.21:5/ A.App. 3).

When Rogers made contact at the vehicle, he observed that there were three people in the vehicle and observed a strong odor of intoxicant coming from the vehicle. (R.21:6/ A.App. 4). Mr. Ambroziak unilaterally exited the vehicle, and Deputy Rogers told him multiple times to get back in the vehicle. (R.21:7/ A.App. 5). Eventually Mr. Ambroziak returned to his vehicle. *Id*.

Deputy Rogers testified that he observed the odor of intoxicant while Mr. Ambroziak was inside the vehicle, and

based on that observation he thought Mr. Ambroziak was impaired. (R.21:7/ A.App. 5).

Deputy Rogers testified he then asked Mr. Ambroziak to perform field sobriety tests, and Mr. Ambroziak refused. *Id.* Mr. Ambroziak refused field sobriety testing because he was on probation and was not supposed to be drinking and knew he would be going to jail anyway. (R.21:8/ A.App. 6). Based on the response to the request for field sobriety test, Deputy Rogers asked Mr. Ambroziak why he was drinking if he was on probation. Ambroziak stated he was celebrating his 21st birthday. Rogers asked him how much he had been drinking and he said a lot. Id. Rogers said Mr. Ambroziak was able to stand on his own, and at some point during the contact observed Mr. Ambroziak to have slurred speech and bloodshot eyes. However, when asked to articulate the factors that Deputy Rogers used to formulate his arrest decision, he said Mr. Ambroziak admitted to drinking, the driving behavior and "I felt he was intoxicated." (R.21:9/ A.App. 7).

After transporting Mr. Ambroziak to the Shawano County Jail, Deputy Rogers read Mr. Ambroziak the Informing the Accused Form and Mr. Ambroziak refused to permit chemical testing. (R.21:10-11/ A.App. 8-9). Mr. Ambroziak

provided no medical or other reason for refusing testing. (R.21:11/ A.App. 9).

An oral ruling was issued by the court on December 19, 2014 finding that Mr. Ambroziak refused to permit chemical testing. (R.21:19/ A.App. 12). The court found that Deputy Rogers observed a "slight stagger, smelled a strong odor of intoxicant, noticed bloodshot eyes." In referring to the observations, the court stated "so not as many things as usual under the circumstances, but certainly reasons to ask for a standardized field sobriety test." (R.21:18/ A.App. 11). A judgement of conviction was entered on December 19, 2014. The defendant timely filed a Notice of Appeal of the Judgment of Conviction on March 2, 2015.

#### STANDARD OF REVIEW

In determining whether there is sufficient suspicion to continue a detention, an appellate court accepts the circuit court's factual determinations unless clearly erroneous, but application of those facts to constitutional principles is a question of law that is reviewed de novo. *State v. Secrist*, 224 Wis.2d 201, 207-208, 589 N.W.2d 387 (1999).

#### **ARGUMENT**

THE ADDITIONAL SUSPICIOUS FACTORS OBSERVED BY DEPUTY DAVID ROGERS AFTER THE TRAFFIC STOP DID NOT RISE TO THE REQUISTE LEVEL OF SUSPICION TO CONTINUE THE DETENTION OF MR. AMBROZIAK FOR FIELD SOBRIETY TESTING

The issues at a refusal hearing under Wis. Stat. \$343.305(9) are limited to (a) whether the officer had probable cause to believe that the defendant was operating or driving a motor vehicle while under the influence of an intoxicant, (b) whether the officer complied with the provisions of Wis. Stat. \$343.305(4), and (c) whether the defendant refused to submit to chemical testing. In the instant case, the first issue is the only contested issue.

Temporarily detaining an individual during a traffic stop constitutes a "seizure" of "persons" within the meaning of the Fourth Amendment. *Whren v. United States*, 517 U.S. 806, 809-10 (1996), *State v. Post*, 2007 WI 60, ¶10, 301 Wis.2d 1, 733 N.W.2d 634. The Fourth Amendment to the United States Constitution and Article 1 Section 11 of the Wisconsin Constitution protect individuals against unreasonable searches and seizures. Thus, a traffic stop is lawful only if it is reasonable under Fourth Amendment jurisprudence. *Id.* at 810. If an officer has probable cause to believe a traffic violation has

occurred, an officer may conduct a traffic stop. *State v. Gaulrapp*, 207 Wis.2d 600, 558 N.W.2d 696 (Ct.App. 1996). An investigative detention must be supported by a reasonable suspicion grounded in specific articulable facts and reasonable inferences from those facts that an individual is or was violating the law. *State v. Colstad*, 2003 WI App 25, ¶8, 260 Wis. 2d 406, 659 N.W.2d 394.

Initially, the Court must determine if the initial stop of Mr. Ambroziak's vehicle was justified. If so, the court must determine whether during the stop, Deputy Rogers became aware of additional "suspicious factors or additional information that would give rise to, an objective, articulable suspicion that criminal activity is afoot..." State v. Malone, 2004 WI 108, ¶24, 274 Wis.2d 540, 683 N.W.2d 1, (citing State v. Betow, 226 Wis.2d 90, 94-94, 593 N.W.2d 499 (Ct.App. 1999)) "If, during a valid traffic stop, the officer becomes aware of additional suspicious factors which are sufficient to give rise to an articulable suspicion that the person has committed or is committing an offense or offenses separate and distinct from the acts that prompted the officer's intervention in the first place, the stop may be extended and a new investigation begun." *Id.* at 94-95.

"The question of what constitutes reasonable suspicion is a common sense test: under all the facts and circumstances present, what would a reasonable police officer reasonably suspect in light of his or her training and experience." *State v. Young*, 212 Wis.2d 417, 424, 569 N.W.2d 84 (Ct.App. 1997). To meet this test, the officer must show specific and articulable facts, which taken together with rationale inferences from those facts, reasonably warrant the officer's continued intrusion. *Terry v. Ohio*, 392 U.S.1, 21, 88 S.Ct. 1868, 20 L. Ed.2d 889 (1968).

Deputy Rogers testified that he initially stopped Mr. Ambroziak's vehicle for spinning his tires and throwing up debris.

In determining whether the continued detention and request to perform field sobriety tests was proper, it is necessary that Deputy Rogers articulate additional suspicious factors that are sufficient to give rise to an articulable suspicion that Mr. Ambroziak was operating his vehicle while impaired.

"There is probable cause to arrest 'when the totality of the circumstances within the officer's knowledge at the time of the arrest would lead a reasonable police officer to believe that the defendant probably committed a crime" *State v. Sykes*, 2005 WI 48, ¶18, 279 Wis.2d 742, 695 N.W.2d 277. The

objective facts before the police officer need only lead to the conclusion that guilt is more than a possibility." *Id.* at ¶18. The State must "present evidence sufficient to establish an officer's probable cause to believe the person was driving or operating a motor vehicle while under the influence of an intoxicant." *State v. Nordness*, 128 Wis.2d 15, 35, 381 N.W.2d 300 (1986). "Only evidence which speaks to the facts and circumstances available to the officer at the time of arrest is relevant to a determination of probable cause in a revocation hearing." *Id.* at footnote 6.

Here, Deputy Rogers testified that he observed Mr. Ambroziak's tires spin and emit smoke from a stop. He stopped the vehicle and talked with Mr. Ambroziak. (R.21:6/ A.App. 4). When asked to articulate his observations of Mr. Ambroziak when they spoke, Rogers said he observed "just a strong odor of intoxicant." *Id.* Rogers testified that based on his observations he believed that Mr. Ambroziak was impaired. (R.21:7/ A.App. 5). At that point he asked Mr. Ambroziak if he would perform field sobriety tests. Mr. Ambroziak refused to perform the tests, explaining to the deputy that he was on probation and would be going to jail for violating probation anyway. Deputy Rogers then inquired as to why Mr. Ambroziak was drinking if he was on probation. Mr. Ambroziak said because it was his 21st

birthday. (R.21:8/ A.App. 6). Mr. Ambroziak said he had consumed a lot. *Id.* What is clear is that Mr. Ambroziak's admission to drinking and celebrating his 21<sup>st</sup> birthday occurred after Deputy Rogers had asked, and Mr. Ambroziak refused, field sobriety testing. Moreover, while Deputy Rogers stated he observed slurred speech and bloodshot eyes, the record is unclear if those observations were made before or after the request for field sobriety tests.

Deputy Rogers stopped Mr. Ambroziak for spinning his tires and kicking up debris. After stopping Mr. Ambroziak, Rogers observed Mr. Ambroziak to exhibit a strong odor of intoxicant. Based on this odor, Rogers continued the detention of Mr. Ambroziak by requesting that Mr. Ambroziak perform field sobriety tests. The odor of intoxicant by itself simply suggests that Mr. Ambroziak had consumed alcohol. This observation was an insufficient additional factor to extend the stop for field sobriety testing.

Because the information gained by Deputy Rogers after the stop was insufficient to extend the stop by asking Mr. Ambroziak to perform field sobriety tests, the continued detention of Mr. Ambroziak was unreasonable and violated both the Fourth Amendment of the United States Constitution and Article I, Section 11 of the Wisconsin Constitution.

#### CONCLUSION

Because Deputy Rogers continued detention of Mr. Ambroziak was unreasonable, the trial court erred when it found the officer had the appropriate level of suspicion to request field sobriety tests and that the refusal was improper. The court should reverse the trial court's ruling and vacate the judgment of conviction.