STATE OF WISCONSIN  
COURT OF APPEALS  
DISTRICT III

**RECEIVED**

**06-29-2015**

**CLERK OF COURT OF APPEALS  
OF WISCONSIN**

---

Appeal No. 2015AP000462  
Shawano County Circuit Court Case No. 2014TR004106

---

IN THE MATTER OF THE REFUSAL OF KORY V. AMBROZIAK

COUNTY OF SHAWANO,  
Plaintiff-Respondent,

vs.

KORY V. AMBROZIAK,  
Defendant-Appellant.

---

AN APPEAL FROM THE JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION BEFORE THE  
HONORABLE JAMES R. HABECK, SHAWANO COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT

---

BRIEF AND APPENDIX OF THE PLAINTIFF-RESPONDENT

---

Scott E. Niemi  
Assistant District Attorney  
Menominee/Shawano Counties  
311 North Main Street  
Shawano, WI 54166  
Phone: (715) 526-2166

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Defendant-appellant, Kory V. Ambroziak, was arrested and charged for OWI 1st in violation of 346.63(1)(a) Wis. Stats, and a local county ordinance for Disorderly Conduct with a Motor Vehicle, 2-82 2(b) (App B), on August 30, 2014, and subsequently charged with a refusal in violation of 343.305(9) for not providing a breath sample when requested. Ambroziak filed a Request for Refusal Hearing through his attorney on September 8, 2014. The Refusal Hearing was held on December 19, 2014, in Menominee/Shawano County Circuit Court Branch 1, Honorable James R. Habeck, presiding. Based upon the testimony of Shawano County Deputy David Rogers the Circuit Court found Ambroziak unreasonably refused the requested breath test.

The defendant-appellant now appeals the Circuit Court decision.

## STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

On Saturday, August 30, 2014, Deputy David Rogers of the Shawano County Sheriff's Department was on duty in uniform driving a marked squad performing a regular patrol. (Tr. 3; 25) At approximately 12:32 a.m. he stopped on Mill Street where it's intersected by Cedar Street in the Village of Eland, Shawano County, (Tr. 4; 3, 5, 20) Deputy Rogers was the third vehicle in line. (Tr. 3; 11) Deputy Rogers observed the first vehicle in line performing what he calls a "brake stand", which means a vehicle driver depresses the accelerator and brake at the same time. (Tr. 4; 12-15) Deputy Rogers observed this "brake stand" to cause the tires to squeal and produce a large amount of smoke. (Tr. 4;

14-15) The vehicle then pulled forward and Deputy Rogers activated his emergency lights to stop the vehicle and issue the driver a citation for violation of the county ordinance of Disorderly Conduct with a Motor Vehicle. (Tr. 4; 17) The vehicle drove 100 to 200 feet down the road and pulled over. (Tr. 5; 6)

Deputy Rogers observed the vehicle's driver's door open, a male exit and placed his hands behind his back. (App C; 1) Deputy Rogers had to repeatedly tell the male to get back into the vehicle before he actually did as Deputy Rogers approached. (Tr. 6; 25 and Tr. 7; 4-5) Deputy Rogers could smell burnt rubber as he approached the vehicle. Deputy Rogers then informed the driver who he identified as Kory V. Ambroziak the reason for the stop. (Tr. 5; 16)

Ambroziak stated he knew he was in trouble. (App C; 1) When Deputy Rogers asked why, Ambroziak stated he was on probation and he shouldn't be drinking alcohol. (Tr. 8; 5) Ambroziak stated he was celebrating his 21st birthday and had just come from a bar where he had drank, "a lot". (Tr. 8; 10, 14, 19) Deputy Rogers observed Ambroziak to have slurred speech, a strong odor of intoxicants coming from his person, and bloodshot eyes. (Tr. 6; 24 and Tr. 9; 3) Deputy Rogers also noticed Ambroziak stagger or have trouble walking. (Tr. 15; 3) Based upon these observations Deputy Rogers believed Ambroziak may have been operating while intoxicated. (Tr. 9; 9)

Deputy Rogers then requested Ambroziak perform standardized field sobriety tests and take a preliminary breath test. (Tr. 7; 20, 24) and (Tr. 12; 13, 14) Ambroziak refused to do either. (Tr. 7; 20, 24) and (Tr. 12; 13-14) Ambroziak was placed under arrest for OWI and transported to the Shawano

County Jail for intoximeter test. (App C; 2) After being read the Informing the Accused Form Ambroziak refused the test. (Tr. 11; 7-14)

### STANDARD OF REVIEW

In determining whether there is sufficient suspicion to continue a detention an appellate court accepts the circuit court's factual determination unless clearly erroneous, but application of those facts to constitutional principles is a question of law and it is reviewed de novo *State v. Secrist*, 224 Wis. 2d 201, 207, 208 (1999).

### ISSUE

**THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY CONCLUDED THE DEPUTY HAD GATHERED ENOUGH SPECIFIC ARTICULABLE FACTS AND REASONABLE INFERENCES FROM THOSE FACTS FOLLOWING THE STOP OF THE DEFENDANT TO PROVIDE PROBABLE CAUSE TO MAKE A REASONABLE DEPUTY BELIEVE THE DEFENDANT WAS OPERATING WHILE INTOXICATED**

The defendant-appellant stipulates that the only issue regarding a Refusal Hearing under Subsection 343.05(9) Wis. Stats. that is at issue here, is whether the deputy had probable cause to believe that the defendant was operating or driving a motor vehicle while under the influence of an intoxicant. In this case the deputy stopped the Ambroziak vehicle to issue a county ordinance for Disorderly Conduct with a Motor Vehicle. 2-82 2(b) A civil forfeiture type violation can be the basis for a valid stop. *St. v. Krier*, 165 Wis. 2d 673 (Ct. App. 1991). Once a valid traffic stop is made an officer is entitled to conduct an investigation into a new violation of law. *St. v. Betow*, 226 Wis. 2d 90, (Ct. App. 1999). If that officer becomes aware of additional suspicious factors which would give rise to

articulable suspicion that a person has committed or is committing an offense separate and distinct from the act that prompted the officer's initial stop. *Id.* at 94, 95. In the instant case upon Deputy Rogers encountering Ambroziak he developed numerous specific and articulable factors which would lead a reasonable officer based upon his training and experience to suspect Ambroziak was operating while intoxicated.

First, the deputy would have been aware that this was a very early time on a Saturday morning, a time when it has been established people tend to consume more intoxicants than during other times of the week. *St. v. Lange*, 317 Wis. 2d 383 at 397 (2009).

Second, soon after encountering Ambroziak, Deputy Rogers was able to detect the smell of intoxicants coming from the person of Ambroziak.

Third, early on in their interactions Ambroziak admitted to Deputy Rogers that he had been out drinking as he was celebrating his 21st birthday. For many people the rite of passage that is the turning of 21 years of age is associated with your first opportunity to go out and legally drink alcohol. Unfortunately, this usually entails drinking far in excess. Ambroziak himself admits to drinking "a lot" at a bar.

Fourth, Deputy Rogers also observed Ambroziak to have bloodshot eyes and slurred speech. He also noticed a stagger or difficulty in walking when Ambroziak left his vehicle.

Fifth, when asked to perform the standardized field sobriety tests by Deputy Rogers; Ambroziak declined. The refusal to perform standardized field



sobriety tests have been determined constitutional in determination of probable cause to arrest for Operating while Intoxicated as well as constitutional in the use against a defendant at trial. See *State v. Babbitt*, 188 Wis. 2d 349, (Court of App. 1994) and *State v. Mallick*, 210 Wis. 2d 427, (Ct. of App. 1997).

Sixth, when requested to take a preliminary breath test Ambroziak refused. A PBT helps an officer in the field to make a determination as to whether any and if any how much alcohol a person may have consumed. Obviously, an officer would want to use this in forming probable cause to determine whether Operating while Intoxicated to be conducted. *County of Jefferson v. Renz*, 231 Wis. 2d, 293 (1999).

At the time Deputy Rogers placed Ambroziak under arrest for Operating While Intoxicated he had certain specific articulable facts that either were a direct sign of intoxication or were moves by Ambroziak to avoid anything that would show just how intoxicated he was. A reasonable officer in Deputy Rogers position could have taken these factors and reasonably would come to the conclusion that Ambroziak was intoxicated.

## CONCLUSION

Based on these foregoing law and arguments the plaintiff-respondent requests this court to deny the defendant-appellant request to overturn and vacate the decision of the trial court.